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Characteristics of GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

ERBEXZMARABD(HXM])GEMZEHE

GEMWEMN > NAFNEARRBE-—ELTHTES  WEARABLEEMEBRIHA LD
NARTERSRERAR - FERENATIETHERERZSAANETRR L&
RBEEHAFNZTERLTELHRERE -

HAGEMLTAREEAFNEAF  ECEMEENEBS THEBRNBIMEIREER
BEAZBRANTERDAR RAREZRBECGEMEENRSSASRBENTE -

EERGREEMARDARBRMEARELANTRTIAE  HEERERTEMET
TEREMER UARRTHEIHEAARSE2BAETATOATMELNFKBEZE
WA 5l Bz E R R R EEREAE -

ABEREUEHIFCEMBES FT R AEMRHENESRL L EBERA
ATARANZER ARASEFHERULALANERRBHE - ARASEEL
El—aBENE BRRRAFARFE AREFRENESEATELBERR
REUMBERHKHAG ALEERCAEMEER  RUREASEREFRIED
EEmE.




Contents H &k

Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
ARERZFERERAMBEZEKER

Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RRERZFEMBMRR T

Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AREERZFEERBER

Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
REERZEPRERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBRRME

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Additional Information

Bt o0 & K

Corporate Information

RAEH

Page
BR

B

30

38

54



The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”) announces the unaudited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the six months ended

30 June 2018, together with the comparative figures for
the corresponding period in 2017 as follows:
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Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

AEEZZFE B LEMEE R X

Three months ended 30 June
BENA=1+HLE=HEA

Revenue

Other income

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of land lease
prepayments

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

(Loss)/Gain on exchange difference

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Impairment loss on other receivable

Share of loss of a joint venture

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive (expense)/
income

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations

Other comprehensive (expense)/
income for the period

Total comprehensive expense for
the period
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2018

ZB-N\EF

Notes HK$°000
Bt 3 FERT
(Unaudited)

(REER)

4 41,408
4 785
7 (12,994)
7 (28,687)
7 (3,439)
(23,396)

6 (53,838)

(42,111)

(3,687)
(448)

7 (126,407)

8 =

(126,407)

(27,526)

(27,526)

(153,933)
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2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET
(Unaudited)
(REEFER)

32,111
172
(45,408)

(28,036)

(3,439)
(35,613)
(39,555)
13,553

(79)

(363)

(106,657)

(106,657)

Six months ended 30 June
BENA=+HULNEA

2018 2017
—¥-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEFER)
96,685 86,106
989 378
(26,127) (66,387)
(31,889) (30,876)
(6,878) (6,878)
(45,520) (64,365)
(105,242) (74,716)
(10,526) 18,279
= (79)
(3,687) -
(550) (497)
(132,745) (129,035)
(132,745) (129,035)
(7,364) 11,982
(7,364) 11,982
(140,109) (117,053)
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Notes
Bt &%

Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June
BENA=1+HLE=EA BENA=+HULSEA

2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\F —E—tF —¥-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET FERT FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEFER) (REER) (RIEE|IZ)

Loss for the period attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense
for the period attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

MG A B S48 -
ENANE 2PN
FEE Bk

AR E 2 'R X
B8 -

ENCIE 2SN

FE P B =

FiEHE

(126,407) (106,656) (132,744) (129,081)
= ) (1) )

(126,407) (106,657) (132,745) (129,035)
(153,933) (140,108) (117,049)
= (U] (4)
(153,933) (140,109) (117,053)
(HK2.80 (HK2.52 (HK2.94 (HKS3.08
cents# {lll) cents& {IlI) cents# {lll) cents& Il
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30 June
2018
—E—N\E§
~A=+H

Notes HK$’°000

B &% FET
((SLETTe[1{=Ye)]
(RETER)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land lease prepayments
Investment in a joint venture
Other receivable and deposits

Current assets

Film products and film production
in progress

Investments in films/dramas
production

Trade receivables

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amount due from a joint venture

Assets classified as held for sales

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Bank overdrafts

Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

Finance lease obligation
Bonds

Convertible bonds
Promissory notes
Provision for income tax

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

ERBEE

mE - WELRE
B LI E
ARELERE
Hipfg B Rz s

nRBEE
EYEMMNEREY
EDD

B HBIREDN
BE

W & 5 508

FE

BNRIE ek
H o & Y 5UR
U & & DR
“Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

He NMIRTTHE &%

mEAaE
JERE S FE
ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁ&%ﬂ
=32
RITEX
RO E R
BE
B 75 A &R i
&5
AR E S
o E R
Fr 15 7 B 1

REBEEFHE
EEMLERRDAER

i 1,774,109
13 449,426
5,850

63,341

2,292,726

2,434
1,311

14 137,405
3,234

102,878

2,414

12 -
13,380

263,056

15 20,459
59,794

16 502,528
181,597

7,120

17 534,472
18 -
19 -
8 2,951

1,308,921

(1,045,865)

1,246,861

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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31 December
2017

(Audited)
(EEZ)

1,779,208
456,304
6,400
105,082

2,346,994

2,420

986
125,695
2,981

81,472

2,414
34,780
19,944

270,592

25,666

115,992
8,416
452,673
200,547
7,158
306,369
106,697
83,991
2,951

1,310,455

(1,039,863)

1,307,131
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i;ated Statement of Financ
Bk R &

30 June
2018
—E—N\F
~A=+H
HK$°000
TER
(Unaudited)
(REERX)

Notes

B &

Non-current liabilities
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings
Bonds
Promissory notes
Finance lease obligation
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

EREERE
REMNER
BE
BEH
EHER
B 75 1 & A
BEEBIERE

HEEFE
BEXR#E
PR A
ff 185

RRBHEE ARG ER
FEVE R M 2

AR

BEREX{CEEBERAR

16 106,500
15,859
17 337,016
19 104,640
16,160
165,629

745,804

501,057

451,716
49,108

500,824
233

501,057

A

31 December
2017
T+ F
tZA=+—H
HK$°000

FHET
(Audited)
(EEZ)

51,387
20,655
413,551
15,478
165,629

666,700

640,431

451,416
188,781

640,197
234

640,431



- uaitea Lon:  ’_ét-édStaterﬁ‘e;at'of
' . Changes in Equity
FEBR B ARREHE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Ll L LTIy Iy

L] EPNT
Properties Share  Convertible Attributable to
Share Share  Special ~Contril { i option bond equity A d ing
capital premium  reserve surplus reserve reserve  reserve reserve losses ~ Subtotal interests Total
NEEH BhE TRRESE E3:0 03
k% BHEE HAHE  RAERR B REEE L1 HkH Rt It Bl #EeE
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tin  TEn  FEx T Tian TiEn  TEn T Taér  TEn Ttn  TEn
At 1 January 2017 (Audited) R=¥-t§-R-B
[£:5:2:9) 399,839 731,706 1,000 78,791 405,015 (147,458) 26,229 15,597 (870979) 639,740 238 639,978
Share issued upon conversion of other SREBEARERETY
payables k{3 38,798 47722 - - - - - - - 86,520 - 86,520
Share issued upon conversion of loan SARERBRMBINRA
interests 11,211 13,789 - - - - - - - 26,000 - 25000
Lapse of share options BREXK - - - - - - (1425 - 1,425 - - -
Share options compensation BRERE - - - - - - 33940 - - 33940 - 33940
Transactions with owners LETIN Tk E 50009 61511 - - - - 55 - 1425 145460 — 145460
Loss for the period FHEER - - - - - - - - (129,081)  (120,031) (@ (129,035
Exchange differences on translation of BRERPEBABRRE
financial statements of foreign operations EEMERZE - - - - - 11,982 - - - 11,982 - 11982
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ~ AHE2EKA /(%)
for the period B - - - - - 11982 - - (129031)  (17,049) W (708
At 30 June 2017 (Unaudited) RZF-t£/R=1H
(REEH) 449848 793217 1,000 78,791 405,015 (135476) 58,744 15,507 (998,585) 668,151 234 668,385
— — — — — —
As at 1 January 2018 (Audited) RZB-\E-A-8
(E&H) 451,416 803,714 1,000 78,791 372,835 (75,087) 51,880 15,597 (1,059,949) 640,431
Share issued upon exercise of share options 1T BREFZTHRH 300 668 (233) - 735
Lapse of share options BREXH = = (262) 262 -
Transactions with owners BREAETHRS 495) 262 735 735
Loss for the period FHEER = (132,744)  (132,744) (132,745)
Exchange difference on translation of BERNEBARBREE
financial statement of foreign operations EEMERZE (7,364) (7,364) (7,364)

Total comprehensive expense for the FHH2ERTEH
period 7,364) (132,744)  (140,108) (140,109)

As at 30 June 2018 (Unaudited) RZB-\EXAZ+H
(REEH) 451,716 804,382 1,000 78,791 372,835 (82,451) 51,385 (1,192,431) 500,824 501,057
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.+ Statement of Cash Flows
RERE

AEEZERES

Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated by financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

Effects of exchange rate changes of
the balance of cash held
in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period

REXBHMR T FHA
BREGZDMAR S HH

BMEEZBME
B FR

B% RIS SEAA
2% 1B R

BONzRER
Re%EEERAB

o B % TSNS R
BT E

HRZHEE R
ReEEHAEB

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

BEREX{CEEBERAR

2018
—E-N\E
HK$’000
TER
(Unaudited)
(REHER)

(40,793)

(237)

42,918

1,888

11,528

Six months ended 30 June

BEAAZ=THILERER

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FHET
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

(142,196)

(561,518)

202,962

9,248

(4,218)

31

5,061




GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2001 as an exempted company under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October 2010, the
Company deregistered in the Cayman Islands and duly
continued in Bermuda as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October 2010. The
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Rm. L&M,
21/F., Kings Wing Plaza, Phase 1, No. 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in
investment holding. The principal activities of the Group
include film production and distribution, the provision of
management services to artistes, event coordination,
provision of travel related products and operations of film
studio and hotels.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”), including
compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS") 34 Interim Financial Reporting and Interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements
set out in Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The wunaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as at 30 June 2018, as the Directors are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable
future, after taking into consideration the ability to
generate funds internally.

The condensed consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v =@ AR A 7
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The wunaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair values. Except as described
below, the accounting policies and methods of
computation used in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2018 are the same as those followed in the
preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

In the current interim period, the Group has applied for the
first time Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. For other new or
revised standards or interpretation that are mandatorily
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, they do not have a material effect on the
Group’s condensed consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2018.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. HKFRS 15 replaced HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations. With
regards to “artiste management fee income” (see note 4)
with the performance obligation being arranging and
ensuring the relevant artiste to be a spokesperson for the
product/service of a customer during the contract period
under an arrangement entered into by the Group, the
relevant artiste and the customer, the management
concluded that the Group merely acts as an agent during
the contract period and hence revenue should be
recognised on a net basis (i.e. the gross amount received
or receivable from the customer net of amount paid or
payable to the artiste). Under the predecessor standard,
revenue was recognised on a gross basis. Such a change
does not affect the net profit recognised by the Group.
Except as described above, the management concluded
that the application of HKFRS 15 does not have any
material impact.

The Group has decided to adopt the modified
retrospective approach with the cumulative effect being
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of the
retained earnings at the date of initial application (i.e.
1 January 2018) without restating the comparative figures.
As mentioned above, the adoption of HKFRS 15 does not
result in any material effect on the net profit being
recognised by the Group and hence there are no material
adjustments necessary to be made as of 1 January 2018.
Revenue amounts presented in note 4 for periods starting
from 1 January 2018 have been updated to reflect the
abovementioned change.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited BEI#E IR {bEBE AR AR
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9
replaced HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. For financial assets that were measured at
amortised cost under the predecessor standard (including
mainly trade receivables and other receivables), they
continue to be measured at amortised cost under HKFRS
9. An expected loss allowance of about HK$3.69 million
has been recognised for the current interim period as a
result of the application of the expected loss model under
HKFRS 9 in relation to an amount due from a People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) local government company of
which the related loan agreement was entered in March
2018 and the gross carrying amount of the loan amounted
to HK$75.65 million as at 30 June 2018. The expected
loss allowance is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses, measured based on the present value of all cash
shortfalls and contractual cash flows over the life of the
asset. Also, the amount reflects an estimate of the lifetime
expected loss taking into account relevant information
available to the Group including forward looking
information. The Group has decided not to restate the
comparative figures in accordance with the specific
transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 9. HKFRS 9
largely retains the existing requirements in HKAS 39 for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The
application of HKFRS 9 has not had a significant impact
on the Group’s accounting policies related to financial
liabilities.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue and other income derived from the Group’s
principal activities recognised during the period are as
follows:

Revenue PN
Artiste management fee EUN -SR-S N
income
Hotel room income B & B IR A
Food and beverage income BHIBA
Entrance fee income PIH A
Rental income AelA
Event income EEA
Sales of travel related i 4% 48 2= f
products HE
Sales of goods BEmEE
Ancillary services Mt 2% R 7
At particular time R RE B
Over time BE —ER [
Hong Kong BB
PRC FE
Other income Hide A
Bank interest income SRATHE WA
Others HAp

4. WAREAEA

AR RE A EEEE LKA RE KA
mF -

Six months ended
30 June
BENA=+HIENEA

Three months ended
30 June
BHENA=+HIE=BEA

2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF —E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET FHET FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RETE%) (R &ER) (REB%) (R &ER)

40 253 183 429

2,870 3,701 6,719 7,395
5,099 6,362 13,007 14,634
15,816 9,047 35,548 27,044
11,098 9,096 27,754 22,394
- - - 9,045

248 101 264 133
410 462 1,044 1,568
5,827 3,089 12,166 3,464
41,408 32,111 96,685 86,106
21,573 15,972 49,863 43,379
19,835 16,139 46,822 42,727
41,408 32,111 96,685 86,106
288 354 447 562
41,120 31,757 96,238 85,544
41,408 96,685 86,106
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group is currently organised
into the following operating segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and - Production and distribution
distribution, sales of of films, provision of
travel related travel related products,
products, artiste provision of management
management and services to artistes and
event coordination event coordination

Film studio operation - Operation of film studio

Hotel operation - Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v =@ AR A 7
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments:

Six months ended
30 June 2018
(Unaudited)

Revenue from external
customers
Inter-segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment (loss)/
revenue

Other income

Unallocated corporation
expenses

Finance costs

Loss before income tax

BE-S-0\&
~A=t+H
1L<@ER
(REER)

RENREFH
LON

7 2 fE A

E%WA
ADERARX

BEKAK

BRET S AR R

Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste
management
and event
coordination
BEYRER
BT HE
HRATHHER
ER EBA
EER
BHRE
HK$°000
THER

(7,053)
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Film studio
operation

pRREE
HK$’000
FRT

(#8)

ol AREBEKRARERE D

Inter-
Hotel segment

operation elimination

BEEE HBEESE L8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FHET THET  THER

(121)

(121)

(26,934) (9,508)

989

(18,984)
(105,242)

(132,745)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEHERGE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) FHBAREE (R)
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste
management Inter-
and event  Film studio Hotel segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
FRER
BT HE
igawiEle
Em-EA
EBER
FEERE EENMKE  BELKE HHEIEH B
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAET FAT FAET FAT FHET
Six months ended BE-F—-t&
30 June 2017 ~A=+H
(Unaudited) R EAR
(REER)
Revenue from external REINREFHBA
customers 616 62,583 22,907 - 86,106
Inter-segment revenue 73 2 fE A 68 - 624 (692) —
Reportable segment revenue BEE R ON 684 62,583 23,531 (692) 86,106
Reportable segment (loss)/ A2®/H I (EE)
revenue WA (6,145) 7,036 (28,008) — (27,117)
Other income RN 378
Unallocated corporation N NGB
expenses (27,998)
Finance costs A& B AR (74,298)
Loss before income tax BRATIS AT 1R (129,035)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers and inter-segment sales during
the period.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, waiver of interest of
convertible bond, loss on early redemption of convertible
bond, amortisation, other operating income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities STHEEREE
Films production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management and Film studio Hotel
event coordination operation operation Total
ERRERET
HERTHMESR - -
EABEREDHHE DERER EEEE Fket ol
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 30 June 2018 (Unaudited) R-F—-N\FrRA=+H
(REBE)
Reportable segment assets ERNBEE ! 1,652,062 874,072 2,542,179
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 499
Cash and cash equivalents ReELBREEEER 9,380
Unallocated corporation assets KPBRAREE 3,724
Consolidated assets GRBE 2,555,782
Reportable segment liabilities ERSBER (5,013) (68,660) (20,785) (94,458)
Loans from shareholders % 3R E) & 5K (609,028)
Borrowings B8 (197,456)
Bonds E% (871,488)
Promissory note AEEE (104,640)
Deferred tax liabilities iﬁﬁﬁﬁ HEE (165,629)
Provision for income tax Wﬁﬁ (2,951)
Unallocated corporation liabilities ﬂi REAE (9,075)
Consolidated liabilities ZEAR (2,054,725)

At 31 December 2017 (Audited) R-F—t&+=A

=+—B(EEZ)

Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 18,389 1,645,751 898,941 2,563,081

Property plant and equipment ME - WELZE 613
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEER 16,384
Investment properties REWE 34,780
Unallocated corporation assets APRAREE 2,728
Consolidated assets REAE 2,617,586
Reportable segment liabilities AERHPBERE (6,126) (88,672) (24,722) (119,520)
Loans from shareholders MR A E R (504,060)
Borrowings BE (221,202)
Bonds &% (719,920
Convertible bonds AR EH (106,697)
Promissory note A ER (83,991)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAR (165,629)
Provision for income tax ERCE A (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEAREE (53,185)
Consolidated liabilities ReEaRE (1,977,155)

16 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v E AR A 7
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than corporate assets; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than corporate liabilities.

Other segment information

At 30 June 2018 (Unaudited) R=ZF—-NEXA=+H

(REB®K)
Depreciation of property, plant ME BERRERE
and equipment
Amortisation of land lease TE T L i 78 B 8

prepayments
Addition to non-current assets

FREEEEM

At 30 June 2017 (Unaudited) R=-F—tE/-A=+H

B ' Ca
C;)ﬁsohdated Financial Statements
A MBS IRARM T

5. DEPER (&)

P HEERER (R
RERSBRARNRDEEIEEIR :
- RAEEN FEEEGIREZAZ
iﬁ S R
- KRAFIBEN FMEEBEEPEREEA2
W B o
Hit D HER
Films production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management and  Film studio Hotel
event coordination operation operation Total
ERRERSET
HERTHMES
EAEEREHHE VRHUEE EEEE HeHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET

15,586 31,870

5,756
35,631

6,878
35,853

(REER)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - WELSENE
and equipment 730 14,832 15,195 30,757
Amortisation of land lease SR ;RN 55
prepayments — 5,756 1,122 6,878
Addition to non-current assets FERBEEEM 159 51,862 910 52,931
Geographical information HWEER

All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong Kong
(being the place of domicile of the major companies
comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the contracts are negotiated and entered
with the customers. The total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v =@ AR A 7
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BEAR
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June
HEANA=A+HIE=ZMEA HEANA=ZA+HIENEAR
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—tF —E-N\FE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&T FHET FAET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEER) (REEZ) (REBEER) (REEZ)
Finance lease charges BEHEER 480 524 966 1,038
Interest on bonds (EETIP 32,213 18,192 61,713 34,842
Interest on convertible bonds AR EFHF B (158) 2,710 2,521 5,389
Interest on promissory note EHEERE 803 2,383 3,209 4,723
Interest on loan from [EEEFHFE
shareholders 15,437 10,988 27,840 20,569
Interest on unsecured other H g BEERNLE
borrowings 1,172 1,416 3,036 3,539
Interest on secured other HBaHEMBEERNE
borrowings 3,276 3,277 5,342 4,488
Interest on secured bank EERRITEEFE
borrowings 615 65 615 128
105,242 74,716
7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRATEMABIEE
Three months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June
HEANA=A+HIE=ZMEA HENA=ZAHIENEAR
2018 2018
—F—-N\%E —E-N\FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEZ) (REEZ) (REEZ)
Loss before income tax is BRATSTIAIEEE N
arrived at after charging =
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SN B &
Amortisation of land lease FEAT 1 78 & 8
prepayments
Depreciation of property, M- BB REE
plant and equipment e
Employee benefit expenses {EEEFIFX
(including directors’ (PREREFH)
remuneration)
Salaries and allowances o REM
Contributions to retirement B AKAR BT B 5k
benefits schemes
Equity settled share-based PSR 2R D
payment expenses S EX
National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v E AR A 7
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil) as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong during
these periods.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not been
provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred losses for
taxation purpose for both periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$132,744,000 (2017: HK$129,031,000)
and the weighted average of approximately 4,517,045,000
(2017: 4,194,558,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
period.

Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2018 and 2017 was the same as basic loss per
share as the impact of the exercise of the share options,
warrants and convertible bonds is anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Directors does not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2018
(2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements of property, plant and equipment of the
Group were:

10.

11.

ﬁéﬁﬁﬁimﬁ

FTS T XX

R AEBRRBE T - N\FXA=1THILRE
Hiﬂﬁﬁfﬁgiﬁcﬂfﬁfﬂmﬂ B 4 Bt
EHMBBNERELEE (T —1F 8 -

A R BB B A A W (B B 15 8215 %Ri%EﬁTE'
E&(IEEJEEFIJJ:%% SH (DK 5725% ) 1 H B &

REMBDERREENHIADIRAEIEEEN
ERMEAE

FREE

FRERNEEDRBEARAGEBS ABGEIERLD
132,744,000/ 7T (=& —+ 4 : 129,031,0007% 7T)
FEHABEBHETEBROMNE A HD
4,517,045,0008% (= & — £ 4 : 4,194,558,0000% )

REEERATARESFEEGR
BYE HBE_T-N\FR-Z—LFRA
THRLERER ARRAEEABGEBENER
FREAEBEER -

L@\
EEFRBENRE-E—N\FAA=TALR
AT RS (T % )¢

mE - BB M&RE

AEBEME BELRBZEHOT

At 1 January ®—HA—AR
Additions: NE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE
Surplus on valuation EHAH
Disposal it &
Depreciation e
Exchange realignment M 5, B
Closing net book value By AR EDRE

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—F-N\%E —ZT—tF
~A=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EER)
1,779,208 1,684,984
35,853 102,274
= (42,907)

(276) -
(31,889) (58,957)
(8,787) 93,814
1,774,109 1,779,208

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v =@ AR A 7
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings
shown above are situated on:

WE - WEM&EE)

EXFRBEL M RETFREEBENDTNOT

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E—-N\%FE —E—tF
VR dEN - — A =1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (%)
Land in Hong Kong under medium-term URBEBNFHEE L1
leases —
Land in the PRC under medium-term leases A F B R HIFH S + ity 9,262
9,262
As at 30 June 2018, hotel properties and the film studio RZE-—NFRAZ+H BEWEREZERL

had not been revaluated and had been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$453,713,000 and approximately
HK$808,274,000 respectively as at 30 June 2018.

Hotel properties and film studio were revaluated on
31 December 2017 by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The revaluation surplus of approximately
HK$42,907,000 net of applicable deferred income taxes of
approximately HK$10,727,000 was credited to properties
revaluation reserve in the amount of approximately
HK$32,180,000. If hotel properties and the film studio had
not been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$453,713,000 and approximately
HK$791,490,000 respectively as at 31 December 2017.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. The
reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
balances is stated in the above table.

There has been no change to the valuation techniques
during the period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these hotel properties and film
studio are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which
the key inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

EETERL YR -_E—-N\FEXA=THKRESL
7R 5 Bl #9453,713,0007% T K £9808,274,0007% 7T
FFASREMBRE -

BEMERERBRA T —+tF+=-A=+—8
HKFITERMERAR (—REAEBERE
WBLAERBEFEMEGR EHFREHD
42,907,000/ JT) 0 B B A &) & & AT 15 B (4
10,727,000/ 7o) 2 & A 85 49 432,180,000/ 7T
WMESGHFE - WBEMERE R FEET
Bt ERER-_Z—+t&+_A=+—B#K
& AR AN 9 Bl #9453,713,0005% 7T & 49791,490,000
BT AR E B RE -

RS AREDENRAAER  WENES L&
EREREBRERE - B RRARBEEHNY
RN L& -

N AERNEEZE - TREHRGRMME
EREEEMERTZEBO R AR ECCERMAMG
ERMEEZEABEB NEN  URBRAAE
AERRAAEMEIEGABBNUBERER
MABHNAAREER(F-—REE=H) -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. % BWEEREGE)
(Continued)
Significant
Fair value unobservable
Element hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs inputs Range/Amount  Sensitivity
EXTIHE fEm/
TR AREER HEREREIZEHBARRE [-DN £ & BEBE
Hotel properties Level 3 Direct comparison method by assuming sales Discounts on -10% to 10%  The higher the premiums or
transactions as available in the relevant market quality of discounts, the higher or
(i.e. sales transaction price per hotel room) properties lower the fair values
BIEME F=H BEREERE BREETSLEHERS AIERE YWEERN -10%£10% EEXFELS 2AERD
EERNHERSE) 13 BRAE
Film studio Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach (based on  Replacement RMB337,000,000  The higher the costs of
current cost of replacement of the improvements, costs of constructions, the higher
less allowance for physical deterioration and all constructions the fair values
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation) on the land
Market approach (based on the comparable Discounts on -10% to 10%  The higher the discounts,
accommodation value sq. ft. observed from the quality of the lower the fair values
market) properties
PR EE NESERNZ(ERDEREENEERES Bz L LRI ARM¥337,0000000T BEXFDS RAEDS
ERBRL—DEREEANRERE{ERIDR) BERAK
TEEERTEEERAESNAILREENET YNELRY -10%£10% HHEDE AAEDE
HRER) 13

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of the
Group was approximately HK$8,892,000 (31 December

2017: HK$9,262,000).

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 12.

SALES

DERKIELEERE

RIBERR AEEREREFAEEENTREN
) BR EFE 4) A8,892,00008 L (ZE—+F+—A
=+—H 9,262,000/ 7T ) °

S

Fair value

At 1 January

Reclassified from investment
properties

Disposal of investment properties

Closing net book value

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—T—N\E —E—+tF
~A=+H +-RA=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FA& T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (EEZ)
A ftE
R—H—H 34,780 —
HEEMEETH»HE
= 34,780
HEREME (34,780) —
B REFE 34,780

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v =@ AR A 7
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13.

14.

LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS

The Group’s land lease prepayments comprise:

13.

BN LHEE
AEEMENLHEE R

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current asset

BMIRE BB 2T
FRBEE

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ZB—0\f —T—tF
VR dEE - — A=+ —H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ%) (EE®R)
449,426 456,304

The land lease prepayments represented the premium
recognised when acquiring the land interests in the PRC
by operating lease arrangement with the local authority.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
30 to 90 days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on the invoice dates, net of
impairment loss, are stated as follows:

14,

BNt EERETEBREM T ERNEEEE
2 PEE 1S £ 4 20 B P RE SR AOOA (B o

fEW & 7 5B
A E W E R B E B IR 44 15 B 4 — 8 A30E00

B - R 5 FOREEE BB 25 (KRR EE R
B ) MERR AT T

0 to 60 days 0E60H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 91E180H
Over 180 days B #E180H

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—T-0\%E —ZT—tF
~A=+H +=ZA=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FTERT FAET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EE%)
20,294 40,669
6,113 19,906
31,816 37,129
79,182 27,891
137,405 125,595

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$110,998,000 (31 December
2017: approximately HK$65,020,000) which have been
past due at the reporting date. The Group has not
recognised any impairment loss for these trade receivables
on the basis of (a) payments were noted from these
customers during the current period and (b) the
management would make its best efforts to collect these
outstanding balances and believes that these outstanding
balances will be substantially recoverable at the end of
2018. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Directors considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods at their inception.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #4244 (v E AR A 7
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16.

17.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group has been granted by its suppliers’ credit
periods ranging from 30 to 60 days. The ageing analysis
of trade payables based on the invoice dates are stated as
follows:

Yy Y -
AN
Y
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[c (}Pﬁso_ idated Financial Statements
N iR E B IS R M A

15, B E 5 RA

REEEE M ER X TI0E0ENEER - B
BORBEREZAH2INMERRITMT

0-30 days 0Z30H
31-60 days 31£60H
61-90 days 61£90H
91-180 days 91£180H
Over 180 days B 180H

30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—ET-N\E —T—tF
~A=+H +=ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFH#ET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (FR &)
593 3,154

138 68

198 14

1,260 1,048
18,270 21,382
20,459 25,666

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Loans from shareholders were unsecured, with the interest
rate ranging from 0%-15% and repayable within one to
two years.

BONDS

Newly issued bonds

During the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Company
issued new bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$232,034,000 (2017: HK$135,870,000) at par value in
accordance with the conditional placing and underwriting
agreement entered into between the Company and the
independent placing agent. As of 30 June 2018, the newly
issued bonds have a maturity from 3 months to 8 years
(2017: from 1 year to 8.5 years) from the date of issue
and bear coupon interest ranging from 1.60% to 11.00%
per annum (2017: from 2.00% to 8.38% per annum),
accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A default
rate ranging from 1.60% to 24.00% per annum (2017:
from 2.00% to 8.38%) will be charged on any sum due
and payable under the newly issued bonds from the due
date to the date of actual payment in full. The newly
issued bonds were denominated in HKS$.
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HE-Z—N\EXA=Z+HLXEAR  AQRRE
ARAREBYRENBITILNBKGRE REH
Wk IR EE T A S 85 A232,034,00078 7T (=
T — + F 1358700008 L) M FEH - N - F
—NEXNA=Z+TH FHTEHFREITASRT =
BRAENF(ZE—tF: —F=2\BAF)EH -
BERNTEF160%E11.00% (=T —+F: §F
2.00%%E8.38%) ' F 2B HRF W ETFIRARE
MAERME - MR N FBTES TR B EE
e ENIHEBZER 28I NEHEEF
1.60%%£24.00% (= T — + F : 2.00%%£8.38% ) 1)
BOMERIMAFE - FETESUETHE-
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The movement for the period on the bonds of the

Company was as follows:

AHBEAARBEFOESHNOT

30 June
2018
—E-N\£E
~BA=+H
HK$’000
FTETT
(Unaudited)
(REE)

Balance at 1 January

Proceeds from issue of the bonds

Transaction cost allocated to the liability
component

Effective interest expense (note 6)

Interest paid during the period/year

Repayment during the period/year

Transfer to other payables

Closing balance

Carrying amount repayable:

Within one year

More than one year but not exceeding
two years

More than two years but not exceeding
five years

More than five years

N—HA—RBz&H
éﬁ@%%%ﬁ
SRER MBS
X%W$

EREFBX W (HZ6)
B/ FRENFE

BN EREE
EEEEMmENRE
R0
ARATHIRAEREZ
BRmEA :

—FRN
—FALETEBMSE
MEAEETEBBAF
HEFALE

719,920
232,034

(43,234)
61,713
(51,422)

(71,241)
23,718

871,488

528,758
77,137

186,786
78,807

871,488
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31 December

2017
—E—iF
+ZA=+—H
HK$’000

FHET
(Audited)
(fEEZ)

506,803
412,457

(87,557)
83,025
(97,271)
(73,819)
(23,718)

719,920

306,369
183,015

166,773
63,763

719,920




18.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
CB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of Lux
Unicorn Limited, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000
(“CB5”) on 15 April 2015. The CB5 has a maturity of 3
years from the date of issue and bears coupon interest at
9% per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in
arrears. The conversion price of CB5, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion
share. The CB5 was denominated in HKS$.

The conversion price of the CB5, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB5 can be converted
in whole or in part (in minimum amount of HK$300,000 or
an integral multiple thereof) into conversion shares from
the date of issue of the CB5 up to and including the date
falling on the 5th day immediately prior to the maturity
date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issue of new shares of the Company at the
conversion price on the due day of the interest payment in
lieu of payment by cash by giving not less than 7
business days’ written notice prior to the due date for
payment of interest. Such interest conversion arrangement
is only applicable to the 9% per annum interest payment.
The Company may redeem the CB5 at any time prior to
the maturity date in whole or in part (in minimum amount
of HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) at the
principal amount of such CB5 thereof plus interest
accrued thereon up to the actual date of redemption by
giving to the bond holder not less than 10 business days’
written notice of its intention to make such redemption.

The fair value of the liability component of the CB5 was
calculated using future repayments discounted at an
estimated discount rate of 11.28% per annum. The
residual amount of approximately HK$46,697,000 (being
the difference between the fair value of the CB5 at issue
date and the fair value of the liability component on initial
recognition) is assigned as the equity component and is
included in equity heading convertible bond equity reserve.
The liability component is subsequently stated at fair value,
with changes recorded in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

In May and July 2016, the CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$35,400,000 were
converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares and
196,666,666 ordinary shares of the Company in total at a
conversion price of HK$0.18 per share respectively. In
June 2015, the CB5 with aggregate principal amount of
HK$79,800,000 were converted into 443,333,333 ordinary
shares of the Company in total at a conversion price of
HK$0.18 per share. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and five holders of the CB5
offered to waive the accrued interest up to the date of
conversion of approximately HK$12,513,000.
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Al B R 75
EEHTRRES

ERRBEERBERAGDNIIRE AR2FRZ
T—AFMA+ A A TR % 4% /300,000,000
BT BRBRES((EAMTRERESD - FH
HABRBREFRETEREN =GR 558
EHEO%  FEFBARMTESFRERIFAR
e - FRBABRBEFNEBREATR L RE
0188 EEX —BREEFHEMGER - £ R
HE AR E S A B TAHE »

FRHL AR E SN LR E BT R ] ()0.18
B AR —REREMAR - AF D AT BK
BHRETAHEEERINMANERH(BEZ
BBE FAMTRARASFNREEASHE (R
1K & #8782 /3300,0008 7T 3 H e B & 8D AT 2 &P sk
B B S R AR D o

FEAMATMRESNFEABESBRN R I H
HABETOR7TELEXEBMNEMBA - MAAA
ERERMBEHAMN S MESRREEREITAR
ANFROKRAEZSFE (2RI D) ARE
WEMAF o WF B H R % P R AR IR FE N ER9%
TRWFBE - AARAIBBABELFFEAEHT
LPRMOEALEENEERANRTEEERLEEH
B 0] 19 75 =0 B BB AT AT ] B R 12 5% 58 it A R R
BEFEMACHEERNEZERELR A AIEWES
M EEOEPFLERAMATRRES (RES
%878 /3300,00078 T S H ST A5 8 ©

FERAMUBBRESFBELINRAABNIEEF
11.28% M HaT T E R FMIM AR RERMTE - Fgg
& %8 4946,697,0007% 7T (BN &8 AL L AT 4R AR (& 25 1A 3%
THHMAREREESIRUTEREND L
BMERE)BRARRIT D Rt AR EHER
HENEZET AEX ERRAARBERE
RPN BERIREM2EKREAYIE -

RZF—R"ERAREA K& 4% 584,600,000
78 7T }235,400,000/8 LAY & AL AT LR EH X H
BESRISE T AEBRAARARNA G &
470,000,0000% % 37 A% X 196,666,666/% & @ % o 1
ZT—RFANA A& T AT9,800,0007 STH F
R MRESEEBETROISE TERAR
A Al A 443,333,333 LMK - MBI EZE T — R~
FH+ZA=+—BLFE KEMRLE(HRSE
| ARAMFERF)RARERITBRRE
FHBAARIREHZAHAHENESFEYD
12,513,000/ JT °
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18. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 18. AR EH (8)
CB5 (Continued) FEM/TRRES (B)
CB5 matured on 14 April 2018. In accordance with the FEREHAIRREFR_FT-NFEA+HTHEEH
loan agreement dated 9 March 2018 entered into between B BREBEARTEEEETLIBBHAZE—N\F
the Company and Mr. Sin, the CB5 with principal amount —ANBZERHZE AARMUBREEREMA
of HK$4,200,000 was settled by the Company by way of © & % A4,200,0008 T2 BRI AT RRES W
loan from shareholder. The Company also entered into a RZE-N\FEATEBEELERET —MHDENR
supplementary loan agreement with Mr. Sin on 14 April HWahmaE ARRABRTALEBRAENEACSEA
2018, pursuant to which, the Company issued promissory 96,000,000 T2 EAMABRKES HE-FT
notes for the settlement of the CB5 with principal amount —“NEXNAZ+TBHLEXNEAR ERAMATBRBES
of HK$96,000,000. For the six months ended 30 June EBBAARBRKARREFEHEN -
2018, the CB5 was fully settled by way of promissory note
and loan from shareholder.
CB5
ERH
iR EH
HK$’'000
FAET
Balance at 1 January 2017 (audited) RZE—ttF—A—HOER
(&%) 110,813
Transfer to interest payable HEBEZTENFE (9,018)
Fair value changes NREE 4,902
Balance at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZFE—+tF+-A=+—H0EK
(audited) —E-NF-A—BHN&EH
(&%) 106,697
Effective interest expenses (note 6) BB BRI (H776) 2,521
Transfer to interest payable EHREZEMNTE (9,018)
Settled by way of loan from shareholder ARG BB A 1 (4,200)
Settled by way of promissory note LA H R (96,000)
Balance at 30 June 2018 (unaudited) RZE-N\FNA=Z+HHES
(RE&&EZ) -
CB5
ERH
iR EH
HK$’'000
FAET
Carrying amount repayable ARUTHRAEEZRTE
Within one year —F R -
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PROMISSORY NOTES

PN 1

On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory note
with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “PN 1”) at
par value in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement dated 22 December 2014 entered into between
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited and Mr. Sin. The PN 1
has a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and bears
coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN 1 was denominated in
HKS.

During the six month ended 30 June 2018, on initial
recognition, the fair value of the PN 1 was calculated by
discounting future repayments at an estimated discount
rate of 12.37%. Subsequently, interest expense on the PN
1 was calculated using the effective interest method by
applying an effective interest rate of 12.41% per annum.

The PN 1 matured on 14 April 2018. In accordance with
the loan agreement dated 9 March 2018 entered into
between the Company and Mr. Sin, the PN 1 with
principal amount of HK$80,000,000 was settled by the
Company by way of loan from shareholder.

PN 4

On 14 April 2018, the promissory note with principal
amount of HK$104,640,000 (the “PN 4”) at par value was
issued to settle part of the principal and interest accrued
on the CB5 in accordance with the supplementary loan
agreement dated 14 April 2018 entered into between the
Company and Mr. Sin. The PN 4 has a maturity of
approximately 27 months from the date of issue and
bears coupon interest at 8% per annum, accrued monthly
and payable in full on the maturity date.

The movement for the period on the PN 1 and the PN4
were as follows:

19.

R Ca
_ solldated Financial Statements

A MBS IRARM T

O EER
AL ER

RZZE—AFMNA+ARA  ARGRERSLZE
BRAREARREFERIFNTESE LKL ERL
BA-ZE—NF+_-_A-+_-_HZESWH=
% T B % 17 A £ £ %8 580,000,000/ JT 2 # H =
BURRE®R]) AN ZERINBETABRI=
FEH ZERFANRIRT AR WAEAREF
HAR IS o BH ZEATIAB TTAHE -

%ﬁi:’:ﬁ*/\i/‘\ﬂ_‘f’aﬂl/\\fﬂ C R HE
R A ARBAZ AR BT RMET AR E12.37%
ﬂﬁﬁﬂiiﬁﬁ% FEHZ RAEERIERER
FEERFERMEI2M BT EFERAZ

AEEBIR -2 \FOA+HEBAEH - REX
RAEEEEINYAHA_ZT-N\F=ANRZ

EXtE ARAFTUBRER
80,000,000 JT Z 7 i, Z &1 »

BNASRER

A RE4

REZFE-—N\FHEA+TMA  BREBEAQBEELE
AVABAZZT-N\FHATMHNAZERMER
& M EETA S S E A104,640,00008 7T 2
ﬁm?ﬁ<f7¥<H“1§4J)W*ﬁ%ﬁ%tﬂ#’qﬂﬂ k2

AR REZFFE - EAAEBINEITHEE
§+%’9*+t1lﬂiuﬁﬁ EERREMEI%T AR
U BREHSASHE-

R RBAROR R RIRAE I

PN1 PN4
& E B FE R ER4
HK$,000 HK$,000
FAET FAET
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—B2#&#®

(audited) (& %TZ) 81,655 -
Effective interest expense EEAMEFAX 9,536 -
Transfer to interest payable HBREEMNTE (7,200) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-F—tF+-_A=1+—H8R

and 1 January 2018 (audited) ZE-N\F-A—Bz&®

(&%) 83,991 —
Effective interest expenses BERAERX (Mit6)

(note 6) 3,209 -
Transfer to interest payable LR EN ﬂ (7,200) -
Settled by way of loan from LARR R B R4 ﬁ

shareholder (80,000) —
Issuance of new promissory note %17 ¥ & i, = i — 104,640
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZZE—NFRNA=ZF+BZ&H

(unaudited) (REEER) — 104,640
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20. COMMITMENTS 20. A4E
()  Commitments under operating lease (a) REHERE
The Group had the following future aggregate REBBBETABEEEREFTUTRE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BEEEMNFAE JHERAT
operating leases which fall due as follows:
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
ZE-N\E T —tF
VIR - —A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TFHET FHE T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (EER)
Within one year —FR 9,759 9,303
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERFREERWE) 32,271 29,388
Over five years H8 38 A F 213,867 99,271
255,897 137,962
(b)  Capital commitments (b) EREE
The Group had the following capital commitments: REBEB AT ERFE :
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\%FE T —+tF
~A=+H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EEZ)
Contracted but not provided for: BETHERBE
Construction of properties (Note) WEER (M) 91,807
Authorised but not contracted for: EHEBRRTH
Construction of properties (Note) Y EER (M at) 355,703 360,187
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20. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

21.

(b)

Capital commitments (Continued)

Note:

Capital commitment for construction of
properties related to capital commitment for
construction of film studio and hotel in
Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount
was approved by the Directors according to
the land lease agreements signed between
the Group and the local authority in Foshan,
the PRC, in relation to the leasing of lands
for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel
operations.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements, during the six months
ended 30 June 2018, the Group paid interest of
approximately HK$29,528,000 (2017: approximately
HK$30,682,000) to a shareholder of the Company.

The emoluments paid or payable to key management
personal during the six months ended 30 June 2018 was
approximately HK$2,347,000 (2017: HK$12,324,000.

A MR M

20. AE(E)
(b) BARREE (F)

21.

Wit : MERERNEAZERBRER
B 6 1L 7 32 R AR R OB IR RO B
A o AR IEANSR B S B R 1L T
75 B P 3% 5] B £ i B 1
(NE B BEEE L A8 R IR % 2
NEBRREXBMBEEEE) B
ERReHChESIE-

EEDIEE

BAKCEZEHRAMBERRANEM LD AHEE
E REBEE-_Z-)\EXBE=Z1+HLEAMEA &
£ @[ ARQE— BB R F B £29,528,000%
JT(ZZ — 4 : 930,682,000/ 7T ) °

REE-Z-NEXA=tBLNEAD Mk
JEN EZEIEABH M A#H2,347,0008 T (ZF
—+ 4 1 12,324,000 7T) ©
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National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

Financial Review

During the period under review, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$96.69 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$10.58 million as
compared to the revenue in the corresponding period in
2017. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the
increase in entrance fee income and the rental income
from the film production crews using film shooting base,
and the additional ancillary services income which
commenced from April 2017.

Staff costs for the period under review decreased to
approximately HK$26.13 million from approximately
HK$56.39 million in the corresponding period in 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$30.26
million in staff costs. The decrease in staff costs was
mainly attributable to the absence of equity settled share-
based payment expenses during the period under review
as compared to such expenses of approximately
HK$33.94 million in the corresponding period in 2017.

Finance costs for the period under review increased by
approximately HK$30.53 million by reason of the interest
charged on additional shareholders’ loan and interest
payment on the bonds issued by the Company from 2017
to 2018.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
decreased to approximately HK$45.52 million from
approximately HK$64.37 million in the corresponding
period in 2017. A decrease of approximately HK$18.85
million was mainly due to the decrease of the operating
expense in the PRC and the substantial decrease of
expenses relating to issuance of new ordinary shares in
the first half of 2018.

For the six months ended 30 June 2018, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$132.75 million
as compared to a net loss of approximately HK$129.04
million for the six months ended 30 June 2017. However,
the Group recorded a net profit before depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, amortization of land lease
prepayments and finance costs of approximately
HK$11.26 million for the six months ended 30 June
2018, as compared to a net loss before depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, amortisation of land lease
prepayments and finance costs of approximately
HK$16.57 million for the six months ended 30 June
2017. The improvement resulted from the increase in the
number of admission of visitor and the related income
and the absence of equity settled share-based payment
expenses in the first half of 2018.
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Business Review

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project (the “Project”)
has a total developed land area of 444,000 square
metres and is a unique studio which incorporates tourism
and recreational facilities such as film shooting areas,
theme parks, hotel and performing arts complexes.

In the first half of 2018, Xigiao National Arts Films Studio
(the “Studio”) attracted a total of approximately 570,000
visitors, with events such as the 2018 Lunar New Year
Celebration, First Writing Ceremony and Students Study
Tour, representing an increase of approximately 26.67%
in the total number of vistors as compared with that in
the corresponding period in 2017.

In November 2017, the Group renewed a sales
partnership agreement with a PRC company in relation to
the sales of tickets of the Studio. Pursuant to the sales
partnership agreement, the PRC company is appointed as
an exclusive agent to sell the Studio’s tickets in the PRC
and undertakes that the sales and distribution of the
Studio’s tickets will be at least 1 million per year. It has
stabilized the Group’s revenue. Other than the sales
partnership agreement, the Group’s wholly-owned travel
agency company, namely, “National Arts Travel Limited”,
has been established and commenced its business in
2016.

The Group believes that the events held and the
agreements entered into by the Group will effectively
improve the brand awareness of the Studio and will push
the Project to the peak.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of Project. It
covers 374,000 square meters of land, including a lake of
120,000 square meters and numbers of indoor and
outdoor studios which are equipped with the most
excellent and comprehensive ancillary facilities in order to
provide the Southern China and foreign shooting crews
the most realistic and delicate scenes.

In the first half of 2018, there were approximately 76
production crews filmed in the shooting base by virtue of
the extensive choices, supreme geographical location and
multifunctional ancillary services of the Studio.
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The Group has entered into several rental agreements,
taking the role of rental agent, with a number of
companies leasing film shooting equipment. The partners
provided the plentiful props, attires and high-tech
shooting equipment including lots of ancient costumes of
Ming and Qing dynasties, antique furniture, simulated
ordnance and other performing props. It is believed that it
will allow the Group to broaden its income source.
Besides creating enormous synergistic effect for the
Group, it will enhance the Group’s capability of provision
of ancillary services in respect of film shooting, and also
facilitate centralization of the industry as well as
strengthen its competitiveness among the peers.

On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”)
approved several wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company to assist the Bureau (i) in the operation and
expansion that would facilitate film enterprises from
various regions moving into Foshan, policy presentation,
solicitation of investment and funding as well as shooting,
etc.; (i) in the operation and expansion of digital studios;
(iiiy in the operation and expansion in respect of
diversification of props and equipment portfolio, leasing
and consolidation of props leasing business.

The Group is the first enterprise designated by the
Foshan Government to help building Foshan as the
largest hub for props and equipment, with focus on film
and television industry, which boost the reputation of the
Group in the industry, thereby further consolidating the
presence of the Studio in the film and television industry
in the Southern China.

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its new wedding photography
business. Through which, the Group leased the Studio
with an area of approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square
meters) for a term of 12 years and the wedding
photography company invested RMB10 million for the
construction of scenic spots in different styles such as
European, Korean and Japanese styles and guarantee
there will be at least 28,800 couples taking wedding
photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual income
from this arrangement will be no less than approximately
RMB1.2 million starting from 2016.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jewelers,
Chinese and western bakeries, Chinese style wedding
gown and wedding planning companies in order to
provide one-stop service for wedding couples. The Studio
is expected to become a comprehensive wedding hot
spot.
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Hotel

The 5-star hotel located next to the Studio, namely
National Arts Resort Hotel (“Hotel”), has officially
commenced its operation in November 2015. The Hotel
provides 350 suites facilitated from deluxe suites to
economic standard rooms. In addition, the Hotel is
equipped with a variety of recreational facilities such as
SPA, modern swimming pool and chess room. Apart from
the recreation, the Hotel also provides commercial
services such as business centre, meeting rooms and
lecture halls.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio
becoming mature and its popularity having increased, the
number of tourists continuously grows, the Group will
introduce additional facilities such as beauty services,
barbecue facilities, and other recreational facilities. And for
the catering, it will provide more dining options and
maintain high quality of foods and services.

At the 17th Golden Horse Awards of China Hotel, the
Hotel was awarded “The Most Distinctive Resort Hotel of
China in 2016-2017”. Widely accepted as the “Oscar” for
the hotel industry in China, the prestigious and
authoritative industry award rationalized and concluded
the overall development situation of the hotel industry in
China and recognized the corporate management quality
and service quality of the Group.

Film Production

Entertainment culture is the core value of the Group’s
business. The Group is committed to produce and invest
in movie and online TV programme to promote the culture
and entertaining.

The movies invested by the Group, “lp Man — The Final
Fight” (3 — 44k —&) was selected as the opening
film of the “Hong Kong International Film Festival” in
2013, and was selected as the recommended film in the
“20th Hong Kong Film Critics Society Award”. And
“Golden Brother” (55 AT A] LAZE) also won the best small
and medium cost film award in China Image Film Festival.
These achievements are really encouraging.

During 2016, the Group invested in the production of a
charity film named “Our Days In 6E” (3 5 #I6EHI), which
was released in various major cinemas on 21 September
2017. The theme of “Our Days In 6E” is in line with the
current social status, laden with educational significance.
It was well-received in schools and relevant institutions,
raising concern and resonance in different levels of our
society.
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In 2017 Profima International Film Fest & Awards, “Our
Days In 6E” was shortlisted in “Best New Director Award”
and Shirley Chan (F fiX #) was a finalist in “Most
Promising Award”. The film was nominated in “Best Debut
Work of Director” in “Marianas International Film Festival”
as well. While it failed to scoop any award, the
nomination was a recognition for a Hong Kong film.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the PRC.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats, and have commenced its operation since May
2014 which supports further comprehensive development
of the Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such as
Rose Chan, Brian Yuen, Rachel Chau and Lemon Yip, the
Group has arranged a variety of performance
opportunities including the participation in the charity
movie, “Our Days In 6E” (¥ {M#I6EH), and the online TV
series “OCTB” (I &), brand representative, dramas and
being the show host of the Lunar New Year Celebration
and guest performers for the “Dazzling Night in Shanghai”
gala (B k&R £8).

Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists and makes arrangement for them to participate in
live reality show and online drama to enhance their
popularity.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artists with potential in the future to
cope with the demands in the vast market and expand
the artiste management segment, hoping that it will
become one of the major income sources of the Group.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources HHEERYBER
30 June 31 December
2018 2017
—ET—N\EF TE— 4
NA=1TH Rt
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RETER) (FEE=Z)
Current assets mEEE 263,056 270,592
Current liabilities mENEE 1,308,921 1,310,455
Current ratio MEN L =& 20.1% 20.6%
Current ratio as at 30 June 2018 was approximately RZE-—NFNA=ZTHENRELE XL 520.1%
20.1% (31 December 2017: approximately 20.6%). As at (ZE—+tF+ZA=+—"H:4/E206%) - A=
30 June 2018, the Group’s total positive cash and cash Z-NERA=ZTH XEEHESEHERER
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$13.38 million & % (E1E H 413,380,000 L (ZE —tF+=
(31 December 2017: total positive cash and cash A=+ —H:- FHRALRAESFTBEEEY
equivalents of approximately HK$11.53 million). 11,530,000/ JT) °
Dividend RE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of an BETEBENEBEE-_Z—N\FRAA=Z+HIEX
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2018 BANFHBRE(ZE—+HF: &)

(2017: Nil).
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Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of the
Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at 30 June
2018, 4,517,161,222 ordinary shares were issued and
fully paid.

—E-N\ERA=+H

EFXFBRABLE
ARFABRBR-ZR_F+ A+t BB

GEMLET c AR AR AEBRESERER - RN _T—N\
FXRA=1+8  *£E4517161,2220% 2 317 K&
R E B -

30 June 2018 31 December 2017

—F—-tH#+=-HA=+—H

Amount Relative % Amount Relative %
ok ] HE % ok HEE

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REERX) (E=2%)

HK$’000 HK$’000

TH&ET FET
Bank overdrafts RITHEX = 8,416 0.4%
Loans from shareholders &M E R 609,028 504,060 21.8%
Borrowings BE 197,456 221,202 9.6%
Bonds BEH 871,488 719,920 31.2%
Convertible bonds Al 2 j% 1 5 - 106,697 4.6%
Promissory note O R 104,640 83,991 3.6%
Finance lease obligation B 7 FH & A 23,280 22,631 1.0%
Total borrowings EE® 1,805,892 1,666,917 72.2%
Equity & 501,057 640,431 27.8%
Total capital employed FMERANERERE 2,306,949 2,307,348 100.0%

The Group’s gearing ratio (note) was approximately
78.3% as at 30 June 2018 (31 December 2017:
approximately 72.2%). If the bonds, convertible bonds
(liability component), promissory note and finance lease
obligation as stated above were to be excluded, the
underlying gearing ratio would be approximately 35%
(81 December 2017: approximately 33%). The increase in
the gearing ratio in current period was due to increased
loans from third parties and shareholders during the
period.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated by total borrowings over total
capital employed.

RZZE—N\FNA=ZTH AEENEBLE(H
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Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme Park
Management Company Limited (8L TR Z 2@ EEH R
‘A B]) (“Guohao Theme Park”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a subscription
agreement with Guangdong Hongtu Guangdian
Investment Co., Ltd. (BEXRSABEEIREERAA) (‘GD
Hongtu”), pursuant to which GD Hongtu will make a
capital injection of RMB20 million into the Guohao Theme
Park, in respect of joint cooperation of the second phase
development of the Studio (the “Second Phase Project”).
The Second Phase Project is planned to have a total of 6
indoor studios and 2 boutique hotels to be constructed
next to the first phase of the Studio and the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
plan for substantial investments or capital assets.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong
Kong dollars. During the six months ended 30 June
2018, most of the transactions, assets and liabilities of
the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. During the period under review, since the
Group had both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
receipts and payments, the net Renminbi exposure was
not significant. The Board considers that the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk was not significant;
therefore, no hedging transaction was made during the
period under review.

Commitments

Details of the Group’s commitments are set out in note
20 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than the disclosure under “Capital Commitments”
on page 28 of this interim report, the Group did not have
any other material contingent liabilities as at 30 June
2018.
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Additional Information
BT pn & st

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each of the Company (“Shares”)

RIS 19 2 5 7 M 2d oA R

RZZE-NFRA=TRH EF ARATET
BABRMBRESEAZBEARAKNRA HE(EMA
BEE(EERBBEAMFENERES RBAEERM
((FEHRBGHES) EXVED) 2 iy - RN &
BEFEEZRERESF MNBAE G EXVIEETRFES
DEWZRERMERNRAINBR 2R RKE
(B Ll AT RIR % EE 55 R E RGO E
ERRAEBZRZRAR)  IREBEBSF LR
{53621 2 M EAB LN 2 B ez 4
mRORE - RIRIEGEM I 147 Al 55,4614 £5.67 16
ZHRERMEARRNBRAZEELRBWT

1. RERGEREELIETZEER (RG] 2
¥#E

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital

Capacity/Nature shares held of the Company
Name of Director of interest Fis WHEATEHRT
EXsa S e BHREE BREZBHEDLL
(Note 1)
(Hr7t1)
Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) BenefLoial Owner 23,352,000 0.52%
wERZL([B&L)) Emla A
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 795,580,623 17.61%
e 48 4 & (A7 772)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 0.02%
R & %k & Emfa A
*Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor Beneficial Owner 1,620,000 0.04%
PR RS A EmEB A
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 2,240,000 0.05%
HmERAEK Em#EE A
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.07%
EELCEE Emfa A
Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.10%
T2 R E EmEB A

BBRE L REBR AR



Notes:

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor resigned as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 July 2018.

This is based on the total issued shares as at
30 June 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 shares).

By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, the spouse of Mr. Sin,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Mr. Sin was interested. For details of Mr. Sin’s
interest in the Shares, please refer to the paragraph
headed “1. Substantial shareholders’ long positions
in the Shares” under the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares” in
this interim report.

2. Long positions in the underlying Shares

Additional Information

B pnE

RARZEER_ZE—-N\FLA—BEHIE
SIFBRITESE -

Wit

WHER-_FT—-N\FNA=Z+THZ2IHE %
TR (BN4,517,161,2220%) -

REEHRPEHEY - B+ (ARE—%
TERREEEZRB) WRBNELLEHE
ERmzMEBRNPHEED AHEEL
EZBERFE  B2HARHBET
ERREEMA TR RARBRGD 2%
BEAR]I—BHETHEERRARHDZ
HRlI-B-

2 REBEOZFE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company

FEY

EETRAZ

ESKE S HEEtE Fi i 8B wmeEatt

(Note‘ 1)

(Kiat1)

Ms. Law Beneficial Owner 11,822,483 0.26%
BT EnE A (Note 2) (K} &t2)

Interest of Sppuse (Note 3) 15,804,563 0.35%

B B ¥ &5 (WY 723)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 45,063,695 1.00%
JE L B8 58 A EnEA (Note 4) (K} it4)

Ms. Sin Ho Yee Beneficial Owner 5,824,161 0.13%
b K =l EmBAA (Note 5) (}175)

*Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor Beneficial Owner 67,024 0.001%
PR KL BEHEAR A (Note 6) (/1 #16)

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 2,307,024 0.05%
HEEHE E=EBA (Note 7) (7 7#7)

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 1,546,896 0.03%
EECEE EnEA (Note 8) (K1 #18)

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun Beneficial Owner 44,980,000 1.00%
N & EmBAA (Note 9) (H17£9)

*

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor resigned as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 July 2018.
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This is based on the total issued Shares as at
30 June 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares).

These underlying Shares represent () 3,982,080
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on
29 September 2010 pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 and terminated
on 29 September 2010 (“Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) under which Ms. Law may exercise the
said options from 29 September 2010 to
2 September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Ms. Law on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the share option scheme adopted on
29 September 2010 (“New Share Option
Scheme”) under which Ms. Law may exercise the
said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (i) 4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Ms. Law on 16 May 2017 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Ms. Law may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, being the spouse of
Mr. Sin, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
is deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares
in which Mr. Sin is interested. For details of Mr. Sin’s
interest in the underlying Shares, please refer to the
paragraph headed “2. Substantial shareholders’ long
positions in the underlying Shares” under the section
headed “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares” in this interim report.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
29 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 29 September 2010
to 2 September 2020 at an exercise price of
HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 58,807 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Mr. Chow may exercise the said options
from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an
exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i)
44,980,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to
Mr. Chow on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to
15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.
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These underlying Shares represent () 1,344,161
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Sin Ho Yee on
28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Sin may exercise the said
options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at
an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i)
4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Ms. Sin
on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Sin may exercise the said
options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an
exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor
on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chan may
exercise the said options from 20 May 2010 to
19 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; and (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chan on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Mr. Chan may exercise the said options from
28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise
price of HK$7.62 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under which Prof. Wong may
exercise the said options from 20 May 2010 to
19 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Prof. Wong on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which Prof.
Wong may exercise the said options from
28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise
price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i) 2,240,000
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Prof. Wong on
16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Prof. Wong may exercise the
said options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at
an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.
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8. These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,292 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
on 13 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 13 May 2010 to 12 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.66 per Share; (ii)
33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Mr. Chui
on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (i) 1,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chui on 16 May 2017 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Mr. Chui may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

9. These underlying Shares represent 44,980,000
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Mr. Cheng Wang
Chun on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Cheng may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to
15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive of the Company or their associates had, as at
30 June 2018, any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

8. ZERBERMDIBORBEARNARAEES R
EREFER T ZTFRA+=ZBET
ELCEAENEMEEERBEETERE
F 817 233,202/ B 1n - HE UL - AL R
- ZERA+ZHE_ZT_ZTFEARA
THHMTEARERE  TEERE
f43.66/8 7T ¢ (NRIREFHERIEFER =
——FZAZ+\BABRTFEAENEDE
HRERERITERE T 81T 233,604 %
BB EAETR T ——F=A8
“t+NBE-EBE-—F=A-t++HHH
TERMERE  TEEAERT.62E T
(A IREMBERESER - —F A
A+ "BERTFTELENEMEEERER
T1E % ¥ T %17 21,480,0008% B 15 &
- BAEAETR -_E—+FERATABE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2018, the persons or corporations, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who

had

interests or short positions

in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

1. Substantial shareholders’ long position in the
Shares

Additional Information

B pnE

T EMRRMEAM A TR M
BNy < Rk MR R

RZE-NFRA=1TH BREXARRRRES
KEIE GO EXVERE3361F R EFE Z B LML
B HARARDEANE  THALTIOEE(BFRAQ
AERRITHRAEIN RARR Z B RAARERD
THEREIORE

1. ZFERRRROZHFE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

Capacity/ Number of L AT
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held EBTREZ
g S e HERHRHE BmuEsLt
(Note 1)
(K17E1)
Mr. Sin BenechiaI Owner 795,580,623 17.61%
5k A& EnlEAA
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 23,352,000 0.52%
B = (Y at2)
Tse Young Lai Beneficial Owner 563,547,600 12.48%
it R EmEAA
Notes: Bt

1.

This is based on the total issued Shares as at
30 June 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares).

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, being the spouse of
Ms. Law, an executive Director, was deemed to be
interested in the all the Shares in which Ms. Law
was interested. For details of Ms. Law’s interest in
the Shares, please refer to the paragraph headed
“1. Long positions in the Shares” under the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” in this interim report.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

1. HERZZE-NFAA=Z+H2E%
AL (BN4,517,161,2220 B 7)) »

2. REBEBFRBAEERN - ARERTEFE
L ZBRB)BRERRELLHEERND
B EE S BRAEL L 2R
BAE F2HATHRES[EERERTT
BABRED  HEARD REFZ#EE R
KRl —HATMREhZzHR] —B-
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Substantial shareholder’s long position in the
underlying Shares

TERRREBRGZHE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital

Capacity/Nature of Number of of the Company
Name of shareholder interest shares held EERAT ST
BREE S e Fitsikin 88 BEAZBHESL
(Note 1)
(B3 at1)
Mr. Sin Beneficial Owner 15,804,563 (Note 2) 0.35%
SR EmEA A (Kt &t2)
Interest of Spouse (Note 3) 11,822,483 0.26%
BB = (M 223)
Notes: et -

This is based on the total issued Shares as at
30 June 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares).

These underlying Shares represent () 7,964,160
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Mr. Sin on
3 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Sin may exercise
the said options from 29 September 2010 to
2 September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Sin on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Sin
may exercise the said options from 28 March 2012
to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62
per Share; and (iii) 4,480,000 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Sin on 16 May 2017
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Mr. Sin may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, being the spouse of
Ms. Law, an executive Director, was deemed to be
interested in all the underlying Shares in which
Ms. Law was interested. For details of Ms. Law’s
interest in the underlying Shares, please refer to the
paragraph headed “2. Long positions in the underlying
Shares” under the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” in this
interim report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who
in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be

had interests or short positions

disclosed to the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the

SFO.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company passed on 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 29 September 2010,
the New Share Option Scheme was adopted and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was terminated. The
principal terms of New Share Option Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 6 September 2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 30 June 2018, the share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 12,071,260 shares of the Company
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
were outstanding. The details of the share options
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at
30 June 2018 are set out as follows:

Additional Information
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BEAATAE-—RER_ZZT_F+HA_-_+_-8
BRZEARZR AR EIEEHMEA R E
BRAAFRBREEREASS - BENEZERH
REBA—ZTZ _F+ALBZARGHEKRER
B £ PO A o

REARAR_FZ-—FFAA_TNAAETZR
RERARE LBBZRER  MBREFECHE
Ry MERAFBREBRESSI SR
MBRRABZIZ2HRREARERAN T —F
FARARBBEHZBEA -

EXRHEREBRESE

RZZE-NEXA=1TH REEIALAHABRE
BB PR A B i AT BB AR A R & $£12,071,2608%
fefn 2 AR E M ARETE - R-FE-NFRA=T
BZREEAARBRZEREFSRENER
REFEIRIAT -

Number of share options

fEREYE
Exercise As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
Category price per 1 January during during during during as at
of participants share  Date of grant Exercise period 2018  the period  the period  the period  the period 30 June 2018
|3 RZB-\&
—F-\f ~A=+H
SEAER BROHEE RUEY s -B-B HARE HATE BAKE BREH i AT £
(HK$)
(#71)
Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 33,292 - - - - 33,292
g2 ZE-ZERAT=H “Z-2%7AR+=ZRE
“Z-ZERATZA
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 20 May 2010-19 May 2020 91,905 - - (25,065) - 66,840
g2 “Z-ZFRA-+tR ZZ-ZT§RA-1RHZ
—Z-ZFRAtAR
Directors 2.89 3 September 2010 29 September 2010- 11,971,128 - - - - 11,971,128
2 September 2020
£z “T-ZFNA=R “Z-TFNAZTHRE
“E-ZFENAZH
Total 12,096,325 - - (25,065) - 12,071,260

&%

Note: All Share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme are vested immediately.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company has been refreshed to up to 449,848,122
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM
date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue (excluding
share options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”); and the
Directors are authorised, at their absolute discretion, to
grant share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of
the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal
with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

As at 30 June 2018, the share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 278,284,586 Shares granted pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The
details of the share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme as at 30 June 2018 are set out as
follows:

HERETE

BER-E—+tEANA-THBRTZRERE
Ae((REBEXE)) LBBZ2RBE BREW
BE AR AT B0 R AR R B ) 4 B AR RE R BI9R HH BE
PR 2 st EIRE S B ¥ = 5 £449,848,122/% %
7 v BLA4,498,481,2220 B 3 1TRR D B EXE » AR
REEFEASE B2 BTN 210% (1R 155 5 I’
ERTEIZ AT~ WARTTE B R R EITEZ
B ERR AN ([EFHETEIBREE) MR EEE 2
BIEREBRETS ZRAABELATRERDZ
B SBEUEHTERELER RIREFE
RRAERTEI TR L 2 AR T (A0 - FR 8 - 817
MEEBEG  BEANEMTERBEAR: NARE
REFHERBHEEBRANTHERESSEL S
MITE R %A -

RZZE—NFENA=Z+H BEFERESTE R
AT SR B S H£278,284,5860% A% 17 2 B IR A %) ok &
TE- R NFENA=ZTHZBEFHERE
BRI MEREEBEOT

Number of share options

BREYE
Outstanding
Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at
Category of price per 1 January during during during during 30 June
participants share Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period 2018 the period the period the period the period 2018
|3 RZF-A\%
-1 ZE-0\E ~AZtH
2HAER e RHEH FEY T8 -A-B HARE HAGE Baxy  BhEd HATE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- 8,232,987 - - (8,401) - 8,024,586
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
s ZE--F ZZ--%=AZ+\RE ZZ-ZFZA-fNHE
=AZtN\R ZT-Zf=R-ttR ZZ--f=f=+tH
Directors 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017- 65,140,000 - (3,000,000) - - 62,140,000
15 May 2020 Notg)
Hz)
s ZT—tf - I +ERATRAE
TAtAA ZT-ZFTATEA
Other 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017- 207,920,000 - - - - 207,920,000
participants 15 May 2020
Ep2EAL “I-tE - ZE-tERATREE
fATAR ZZ-ZFRATERA
Total 281,292,987 - (3,000,000) (8,401) - 278,284,586
ag

Note: The weighted average closing price of shares of the
Company immediately before the date on which the
options were exercised is HK$0.41.

Brat: BERBEREETEE B2 AR RRMD O INE
FHKTE ROMBTT -

BBRE L REBR AR
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(i)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme’s purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to selected person and
to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include any employee of the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company, a director, a
shareholder, a supplier, a customer or any
subsidiary of the Company; an agent, adviser,
consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-contractor,
expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of its
subsidiary; a holder of any securities issued.

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the
AGM, the scheme limit on the grant of options
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company was
refreshed to up to 449,848,122 Shares, being 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of the meeting
(i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue) (excluding share
options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) and representing approximately 9.96% of
the issued Shares as at the date of this interim
report (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares); and the Directors
are authorized, at their absolute discretion, to grant
share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the
rules of the New Share Option Scheme; to allot,
issue and deal with the Shares pursuant to the
exercise of share options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit; and to do such acts and execute such
documents for or incidental to implement the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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(vi)
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Maximum entitlement of each qualifying participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any
options which, if exercised in full, would result in
such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1%
of the aggregate number of Shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such
grant is approved in advance by the shareholders in
general meeting. No qualifying participant who is a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective
associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued
and issuable to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the number of Shares then in issue; and (b)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on each
relevant date on which the grant of such options is
made to such person under the relevant scheme, in
excess of HK$5 million.

Option period

The share options may be exercised in whole or in
part by the participant at any time during the
exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant new share options
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly signed in a
form approved by the Board (together with payment
of the exercise price in full in respect of each new
share to be subscribed for) and delivery of the new
share option certificate for amendment or
cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable of
or open for acceptance shall be made after the
expiry of the exercise period pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme.

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer. The share
option offer will be offered for acceptance for a
period of 14 days from the date on which the offer
is granted.
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(vii)  Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for the share under the New
Scheme will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of a new share option but in any case the
subscription price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business day
immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

(ix)  Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the date
on which the New Share Option Scheme becomes
unconditional. The Board may amend any of the
provisions of the New Share Option Scheme or
withdraw or otherwise terminate the New Share
Option Scheme at any time but no alterations shall
be made to the advantage of any participant unless
approved by the shareholders in general meeting.
All new share options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercise shall continue to
be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme.

EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION
POLICY AND TRAINING SCHEMES

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had a total of 506 (2017:
509) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
remuneration paid or payable to the staff during the six
months ended 30 June 2018 was approximately
HK$20,045,000 (2017: HK$20,058,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performances,
experiences and the prevailing industry practices. In
addition to basic salaries and mandatory provident fund,
staff benefits including medical coverage scheme and
share options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed
periodically by the remuneration committee of the Board
and the Board’s remuneration is determined by reference
to market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. The Group aimed to
recruit, retain and develop competent individuals who
were committed to the Group’s long-term success and
growth. Remunerations and other benefits of employees
were reviewed annually in response to both market
conditions and trends, and were based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance.
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The current remuneration of directors and key
management is determined by the individuals
performance and market trends.

During the period under review, the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees
or disruption to its operation due to labour disputes nor
has it experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and
retention of experienced staff. The Directors believe that
the Group has a good working relationship with its
employees.

The Group encourages and supports the employees in
personal and professional training and also encourages a
culture of experience-sharing. The Group organises
various forms of training covering management,
customers service, financial, etc to the PRC office with
support from the Hong Kong head office. Other than the
internal training programme, the Group has also
established a continuous education scheme (the
“Education Scheme”). According to the Education
Scheme, the employee who passed the probation will be
entitled to the subsidy for the specified course approved
by the management with the maximum amount to
HK$50,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the six months ended 30 June 2018.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the
Group during the six months ended 30 June 2018.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”) in 2002 with written terms
of reference, which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s annual reports and financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and
discuss with the management over issues relating to
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. As at the
date of this interim report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Prof. Wong
Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Group’s
unaudited results for the six months ended 30 June 2018
and this interim report have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results has complied with applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim to maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. Save as disclosed below,
to the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has
complied with all of the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”)
during the six months ended 30 June 2018.

As Mr. Chow Kai Weng serves as both the chairman
(“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer (“Chief
Executive Officer”) of the Company with effect from
18 June 2018, such practice deviates from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and enhance effectiveness of its
operation. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the six months ended 30 June
2018.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Changes in the Directors’ information from the date of the
2017 annual report of the Company to the date of this
interim report are set out below:

(1) Mr. Sin resigned as the Chairman and a non-
executive Director and ceased to act as a member
and the chairman of the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) of the Board with effect
from 4 May 2018. Mr. Sin also resigned from all
director positions in the subsidiaries of the
Company with effect from 4 May 2018.

) Mr. Chow Kai Weng, a then vice chairperson of the
Company (“Vice Chairperson”) and an executive
Director, was appointed as the Chairman and a
member and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 4 May 2018. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and the
compliance officer (“Compliance Officer”) of the
Company on 13 June 2018.

3) Mr. Cheng Wang Chun was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 4 May 2018. He
was appointed as an authorised representative
(pursuant to Rule 5.24 of the GEM Listing Rules)
(“Authorised Representative”) and an authorized
representative to accept on the Company’s behalf
service of process and notices in Hong Kong under
Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) of the Company
(“Process Agent”) with effect from 13 June 2018.

4) Ms. Law, the Vice Chairperson and an executive
Director, resigned as the Chief Executive Officer, the
Compliance Officer, an Authorised Representative
and a Process Agent with effect from 13 June 2018.
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Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor resigned as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and remuneration committee of the Board with
effect from 1 July 2018.

Dr. Lam Lee G. was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited, shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
404), with effect from 17 May 2018. He resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Xi’an
Haitiantian Holdings Co., Ltd., shares of which are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
8227), with effect from 23 July 2018.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert resigned as an independent
non-executive director of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited, shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8201),
with effect from 31 July 2018.

Save as disclosed above, from the date of the 2017
annual report of the Company to the date of this interim
report, there were no substantial changes to the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
Chow Kai Weng

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 9 August 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chow Kai Weng
(Ceased to be Vice Chairperson and appointed as
Chairman on 4 May 2018. Appointed as
Chief Executive Officer on 13 June 2018)

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director
Ms. Law Po Yee
(Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 13 June 2018)

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Resigned on 4 May 2018)

Executive Directors
Ms. Sin Ho Yee
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun (Appointed on 4 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lam Lee G.
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on 5 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sun Shui

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Appointed on 13 June 2018)
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned on 13 June 2018)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Rm. L&M, 21/F King Wing Plaza
Phase 1, 3 On Kwan Street
Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong
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SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun (Appointed on 13 June 2018)
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned on 13 June 2018)

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman) (Appointed on 4 May 2018)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) (Resigned on 4 May 2018)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong
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Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE

8228
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TR ER
Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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